
Nevada Commission on Peace Officer 
 Standards and Training 

POST COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY JULY 27, 2017 – 1:00 PM 

THE PROSPECTOR HOTEL & CASINO, 
GHOST TRAIN ROOM, 1501 E. AULTMAN, ELY, NEVADA 





COMMISSION MEETING 
 

 
Notice & Agenda 



 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 

COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICER STANDARDS AND TRAINING 
5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue 

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701 
(775) 687-7678    FAX (775) 687-4911 

BRIAN SANDOVAL                                                                                                                                                                                  MICHAEL D.  SHERLOCK 
Governor Executive Director 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING (NRS 241) 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT STARTING AT 1:00 P.M. ON THURSDAY JULY 27, 2017, THE 
COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICER STANDARDS AND TRAINING WILL HOLD A REGULARLY 
SCHEDULED MEETING AT THE PROSPECTOR HOTEL & CASINO, GHOST TRAIN ROOM, 1501 
E. AULTMAN, ELY, NEVADA.  
 
The agenda will include the following items.  The Commission, at their discretion, may take items out of 
order, combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and remove an item from the agenda or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.  A request to have an item on the agenda heard out 
of order shall be made to the Commission’s secretary prior to the commencement of the meeting. Prior to the 
commencement or conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due 
process rights of an individual the Commission may refuse to consider public comment.  See NRS 233B.126. 

 
I. REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 

 
1. Call to order 

 
2. Roll call of Commission Members 

 
3. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

   Approval of minutes from the May 4, 2017 regularly scheduled POST Commission Meeting. 
  

4. INFORMATION   Executive Director’s report. 
a. Training Division:  Update on training and shoot house 
b. Standards Division:  Legislative update on Dispatcher Certification Program  
c. Administration:  Filled the Administrative Assistant II vacant position 

 
5. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

A request from the Lander County Sheriff’s Office for their employee Spencer Roberts, for a 6 
month extension past the one year requirement, to April 3, 2018, in order to meet the requirements 
for certification.  
 

6. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
A request from the Mineral County Sheriff’s Office for their employee Michael Cannella, for a 6 
month extension past the one year requirement, to February 15, 2018, in order to meet the 
requirements for certification. 
 



 

2 
 

7. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
Request from the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office for their employee Chief Deputy Thomas Green 
for an Executive Certificate. 
 

8. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
Request from the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department for their employee Assistant Sheriff 
Thomas A. Roberts for an Executive Certificate. 
 

9. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
Request from the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department for their employee Captain Jack R. 
Owen for an Executive Certificate. 

 
10. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
  Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the suspension of Robert Reasoner, formerly of the 

Nevada Transportation Authority, certification based on a Criminal Complaint to a Category C 
Felony.  The Commission will decide whether to suspend Mr. Reasoner’s Category II Basic 
Certificate. 

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 The Commission may not take action on any matter considered under this item until the matter is 
specifically included on an agenda as an action item.   

 
12. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

 Schedule upcoming Commission Meeting.   
 

13. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
  Adjournment. 
 

POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS: 
 

POST Administrative Office, Carson City 
Nevada State Capitol, Carson City 

Blasdel State Building, Carson City 
Nevada State Library and Archives, Carson City 

Grant Sawyer Building, Las Vegas 
Carson City Sheriff’s Office 

White Pine County Sheriff’s Office 
http://post.nv.gov 

http://notice.nv.gov 
 

Electronically Posted pursuant to NRS 241.020(4) 
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2)(c), a copy of supporting materials for the meeting may be obtained by contacting 
POST Standards Division, at (775) 687-3335, Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training at 5587 
Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 89701. 
 
NOTE: We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled 
and wish to attend the meeting.  If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the 

http://post.nv./
http://notice.nv.gov/


 

3 
 

Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training at 5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 
89701 or call Scott Johnston at (775) 687-7678, Ext. 3335, no later than 2 working days prior to the meeting.  
 



COMMISSION MEETING ITEMS 1 & 2 
 

1.  Call to Order 
 
2.  Roll call of Commission Members 





COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 3 
 

3.  DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 Approval of minutes from the May 4, 2017 regularly scheduled POST Commission 

Meeting. 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PEACE OFFICERS' STANDARDS AND TRAINING 
 

PUBLIC MEETING 
 

May 4th, 2017 
 

8:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Commission On Peace Officer Standards 
and Training 

Room 2 
5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue 

Carson City, Nevada 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



                                                                         2 
 
 
 
           1   MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
           2      Ronald Pierini Sheriff - Chairman, 
                  Douglas County Sheriffs' Office 
           3 
                  Michele Freeman, Chief 
           4      City of Las Vegas Department of 
                  Public Safety 
           5 
                  Kevin McKinney, Undersheriff 
           6      Elko County Sheriff's Office 
 
           7      James Ketsaa, Chief 
                  Clark County School District Police 
           8      Department 
 
           9      Russell Pedersen, Chief Deputy 
                  Washoe County Sheriff's Office 
          10 
                  Gary Schofield, Deputy Chief 
          11      Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 
                  Department 
          12 
                  Troy Tanner, Police Chief 
          13      Mesquite Police Department 
 
          14      Dan Watts, Sheriff 
                  White Pine County Sheriff's Office 
          15 
                  James M. Wright, Director 
          16      Department of Public Safety 
 
          17 
 
          18   STAFF PRESENT: 
 
          19      Michael Sherlock, Executive Director, 
                  Commissions on Peace Officers 
          20      Standards and Training 
 
          21      Michael Jensen, Senior Deputy 
                  Attorney General 
          22      Department of Motor Vehicles and 
                  Department of Public Safety 
          23 
                  Scott Johnston, Bureau Chief, 
          24      Commission on Peace Officers 
                  Standards and Training 
          25  



                                                                         3 
 
 
 
           1             RON PIERINI:  Today is May 4th, 2017. 
 
           2        It's about 8:30 in the morning.  And we're 
 
           3        having our agenda items and also workshop.  So 
 
           4        what we would like to do is to go forward with 
 
           5        this and to go with the call of order, which 
 
           6        I'm doing now. 
 
           7                  What I want to do right now is get 
 
           8        started with the roll call.  So if we could, 
 
           9        Chief, we'll start with you. 
 
          10             TROY TANNER:  Troy Tanner, Mesquite. 
 
          11             RON PIERINI:  Ron Pierini, Douglas 
 
          12        County. 
 
          13             KEVIN MCKINNEY:  Kevin McKinney, Elko 
 
          14        County. 
 
          15             RUSS PEDERSEN:  Russ Pedersen, Washoe 
 
          16        County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
          17             MICHELE FREEMAN:  Michele Freeman, City 
 
          18        of Las Vegas, Department of Public Safety. 
 
          19             JIM WRIGHT:  Jim Wright, DPS. 
 
          20             GARY SCHOFIELD:  Gary Schofield, Las 
 
          21        Vegas Metropolitan Police Department. 
 
          22             DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, White Pine County 
 
          23        Sheriff’s Office. 
 
          24             MIKE JENSEN:  Mike Jensen, Attorney 
 
          25        General's office.               



                                                                         4 
 
 
 
           1             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock, from POST. 
 
           2             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston, from POST. 
 
           3             RON PIERINI:  And we also have one on the 
 
           4        phone.  Chief, are you there? 
 
           5             JIM KETSAA:  Yes, good morning. 
 
           6        Jim Ketsaa, Clark County School Police, on the 
 
           7        phone. 
 
           8             RON PIERINI:  Good.  Thank you very much. 
 
           9        One of the things that we want to do is remind 
 
          10        the pubic, if anybody in here hasn't signed up 
 
          11        to the right of me, should do so.  We'd 
 
          12        also like to have your name, and also what 
 
          13        agency you belong to if you come up to this 
 
          14        table. 
 
          15                  I want to make sure that all of the 
 
          16        commissioners have their cell phones turned 
 
          17        off or at least where I can't hear anything, 
 
          18        that would be great. 
 
          19                  I want to also make sure that you're 
 
          20        saying a topic here, that you say your name. 
 
          21        Make sure that's very clear so we can get that 
 
          22        for the record.  Whatever you say here to the 
 
          23        person next to you, could be also on the 
 
          24        agenda for maybe saying things that maybe we 
 
          25        shouldn't have said.  



                                                                         5 
 
 
 
           1                  Also, we want to make sure that 
 
           2        anybody here that has their cell phones, to 
 
           3        make sure that gets turned off. 
 
           4                  So one of the things we want to do 
 
           5        right now is do the workshop.  And one of the 
 
           6        things, Mike, we always talk a little bit 
 
           7        about what the workshop is all about, and how 
 
           8        come we're doing this today. 
 
           9             MIKE JENSEN:  Sure.  I'm happy to give a 
 
          10        Readers Digest version of what we're doing. 
 
          11        This is a workshop that's part of the 
 
          12        rule-making process under Chapter 233 of the 
 
          13        NRS. 
 
          14                  This is the first step in 
 
          15        rule-making, and it can serve a couple of 
 
          16        purposes that allows for the commission to 
 
          17        talk with and discuss with other subject matter 
 
          18        experts or interested persons about potential 
 
          19        regulations that the commission is looking at 
 
          20        or at some point adopting. 
 
          21                  Sometimes there will be actual 
 
          22        language that's being considered by the 
 
          23        commission and other times it's just general 
 
          24        topics that you're discussing in conjunction 
 
          25        with a potential regulation.  



                                                                         6 
 
 
 
           1                  This part of the process doesn't 
 
           2        involve taking any action of adopting a 
 
           3        regulation, it's just for discussion and 
 
           4        comment purposes. 
 
           5             RON PIERINI:  Thank you, Mike.  I 
 
           6        appreciate that. 
 
           7                  One of the things we always want to 
 
           8        do is to have some input from each one of our 
 
           9        commissioners or out from the public.  We'll 
 
          10        certainly ask the public if they would like to 
 
          11        do just that in a few minutes. 
 
          12                  The purpose of this workshop is to 
 
          13        solicit comments, and we talked about that. 
 
          14        Mike just mentioned that.  But I want to start 
 
          15        with the Topic A.  And we can do this under 
 
          16        NAC 289.230. 
 
          17                  The Commission will discuss 
 
          18        revisions to the requirement for maintaining a 
 
          19        basic certificate under 289.230 5(a).  It 
 
          20        would clarify the term "firearm" to include 
 
          21        wording of the firearm type in Section 7.  Add 
 
          22        a new subsection (d) that when an officer is 
 
          23        hired, rehired, or reinstated on or after July 
 
          24        1 of the reporting year, they must satisfy the 
 
          25        requirements of paragraphs (b) and (e)  



                                                                         7 
 
 
 
           1        inclusively, of subsection 5 and show 
 
           2        proficiency in the use of each firearm type he 
 
           3        or she is authorized to use before resuming 
 
           4        his or her duties as a peace officer. 
 
           5                  So Mike, are you going to talk about 
 
           6        it or Scott? 
 
           7             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Sure, I can try to 
 
           8        explain this.  In terms of workshop A here, we 
 
           9        are simply looking to clean up the language in 
 
          10        289.230 which deals with the requirements to 
 
          11        maintain a certificate.  That is a yearly 
 
          12        maintenance, and demonstration of proficiency 
 
          13        found in the NAC. 
 
          14                  As some of you may recall, we have 
 
          15        had some confusion in terms of the firearms 
 
          16        proficiency requirement.  Under the current 
 
          17        regs, a certificate holder must demonstrate 
 
          18        proficiency with every firearm authorized 
 
          19        biannually. 
 
          20                  So the confusion was if -- I don't 
 
          21        know -- if you -- you go out and qualify with 
 
          22        a Glock 19, the next day you buy the exact 
 
          23        same gun.  Some have interpreted that as you 
 
          24        have to come right back out and shoot that 
 
          25        Glock 19 again, which really is not the intent  



                                                                         8 
 
 
 
           1        of that particular regulation.  We simply want 
 
           2        to change the wording to firearm types so 
 
           3        agencies can interpret that as, you know, a 
 
           4        consistent platform, if you know how to use 
 
           5        that and you are proficient in that weapon 
 
           6        type, you're good to go. 
 
           7                  It does allow flexibility for 
 
           8        agencies.  They can -- if you want to qualify 
 
           9        every other day, that's fine.  And every 
 
          10        other -- every gun, this doesn't prohibit 
 
          11        that, but it does allow some of that 
 
          12        flexibility and makes it more clear. 
 
          13                  The other areas were shotguns. 
 
          14        Where, you know, an officer is authorized to 
 
          15        use any shotgun in the arsenal, right?  Every 
 
          16        car has a shotgun.  Some interpreted that that 
 
          17        they either had to be specifically assigned a 
 
          18        shotgun or shoot every shotgun that they 
 
          19        have -- you know.  It just doesn't make sense. 
 
          20                  So we want to -- really want to 
 
          21        clean that up, and that's how we do that with 
 
          22        that in terms of firearms. 
 
          23                  The second issue in that regulation 
 
          24        was where an agency is hiring like a lateral 
 
          25        or they have someone that's off on  



                                                                         9 
 
 
 
           1        administrative leave for most of the year, and 
 
           2        I don't know, they come back in December. 
 
           3        Well, under the current regs, agencies are 
 
           4        forcing them to shoot twice.  To do the 
 
           5        biannual, you know, twice, two shoots, for the 
 
           6        year, which again goes against the intent of 
 
           7        that regulation.  The intent was demonstrate 
 
           8        proficiency in the first half of the year, and 
 
           9        demonstrate proficiency in the second half. 
 
          10                  And if you think about it from a 
 
          11        logical point, you know, if the guy comes 
 
          12        back -- the officer returns in December, you 
 
          13        have him shoot in the morning, they 
 
          14        demonstrate proficiency, you can't demonstrate 
 
          15        proficiency again.  You've already 
 
          16        demonstrated proficiency, and essentially you 
 
          17        have them shoot again in the afternoon to get 
 
          18        the two for the year, just didn't make sense. 
 
          19                  So basically what we do is clean up 
 
          20        the language here.  If the officer is 
 
          21        returning to the full-time status, or a new 
 
          22        hire, and it's -- the return date is after 
 
          23        July 1st, they only have to do one shoot and 
 
          24        they've satisfied the maintenance requirement 
 
          25        for the year and they've demonstrated  



                                                                        10 
 
 
 
           1        proficiency. 
 
           2                  That is the intent of the 
 
           3        regulation.  You can have them shoot as many 
 
           4        times as you want.  We're just saying for that 
 
           5        maintenance portion of it, that's specifically 
 
           6        what we're trying to clean up with this reg 
 
           7        change. 
 
           8                  I can answer any questions. 
 
           9             RON PIERINI:  Thank you, Mike. 
 
          10        Commissioners, anything?  It kind of goes 
 
          11        along with one thing for the CCW.  If you 
 
          12        recall from when we did that permit process, 
 
          13        it changed all of Nevada.  And was very -- it 
 
          14        was up to the sheriff whether it was -- to go 
 
          15        forward with that.  And then obviously the 
 
          16        Legislature changed that.  We all had all of 
 
          17        those items that we had to go through. 
 
          18                  One of the things they used to do on 
 
          19        the CCW was if you used this particular gun of 
 
          20        a -- for instance a Glock 17, that's okay, but 
 
          21        you can't go to a Glock 19 until you go 
 
          22        through the process with an instructor. 
 
          23                  And you had to have that listed 
 
          24        actually on the form itself.  So that's what 
 
          25        this is kind of about is that we don't want to  



                                                                        11 
 
 
 
           1        do that.  This is a good way to do it.  We had 
 
           2        some agencies, as Mike had mentioned, saying 
 
           3        that we don't understand that, as well.  So 
 
           4        this is an easy way to address this, and 
 
           5        probably the right thing to do.  That's my 
 
           6        comment. 
 
           7                  Does anybody from the commissioners 
 
           8        would like to have a comment? 
 
           9             MICHELE FREEMAN:  I have a question.  So 
 
          10        for clarity purposes, I just want to make sure 
 
          11        I'm understanding correctly.  So we're looking 
 
          12        at like from January 1 to June 30th is one 
 
          13        qual, and we're looking from July 1 to the end 
 
          14        of the year, December 31st, is what the intent 
 
          15        is for the qualifications.  It can't be one in 
 
          16        January and one in June? 
 
          17             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
          18        record.  I would say the intent, simply by the 
 
          19        term biannual, is any time during that first 
 
          20        six months and then any time in the second six 
 
          21        months. 
 
          22                  Now, for us, you know, I'm not going 
 
          23        to say we're going to worry about whether it's 
 
          24        June 30th, you know, August 1st, but, you 
 
          25        know, essentially that's what we would hope  



                                                                        12 
 
 
 
           1        agencies strive for. 
 
           2                  And let's be honest, most agencies 
 
           3        qualify more than twice a year, I think anyway 
 
           4        to a certain extent, it's usually not an 
 
           5        issue. 
 
           6                  The issue that occurs is where 
 
           7        you're hiring someone who is a lateral from 
 
           8        another agency or they've been on admin leave 
 
           9        or medical leave and they're returning and 
 
          10        there's been, you know, some issues with 
 
          11        compliance where they come back in December 
 
          12        and only have one shoot in our system. 
 
          13                  This kind of cleans that up.  We're 
 
          14        not going to make the person shoot twice 
 
          15        because there's no value in that in terms of 
 
          16        proficiency.  Again, we're not speaking -- 
 
          17        this is about maintaining your certificate.  I 
 
          18        would encourage everybody to talk to their 
 
          19        legal in terms of, you know, whether specific 
 
          20        guns have to be shot and that kind of thing, 
 
          21        but in terms of compliance with certification, 
 
          22        that's what we're talking about. 
 
          23             RON PIERINI:  Thank you.  Any questions? 
 
          24        How about the public?  Would anybody like to 
 
          25        make comments?  Questions?  



                                                                        13 
 
 
 
           1                  Okay.  We'll go on to B, if we 
 
           2        could. 
 
           3                  And this is under NAC 289.310.  The 
 
           4        Commission is to discuss requirements for 
 
           5        course certification where a provider of a 
 
           6        training located outside of the state of 
 
           7        Nevada, the change would require the provider 
 
           8        to have the programs that are certified to the 
 
           9        International Directors of Law Enforcement 
 
          10        Standards and Training National Certification 
 
          11        Program.  So Mike? 
 
          12             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Okay.  Mike Sherlock for 
 
          13        the record.  In workshop B what we're looking 
 
          14        to really do is kind of clean up our 
 
          15        regulation dealing with advance training. 
 
          16        This is not basic training, this is 
 
          17        certification of advance training courses. 
 
          18                  First we want to kind of clean up 
 
          19        some of the confusion that's in the language, 
 
          20        as far as what documentation POST needs to 
 
          21        certify a class.  And so you see that what 
 
          22        we're -- we require certain things for a 
 
          23        course to be certified; the lesson plans and 
 
          24        that kind of thing.  Some of the language was 
 
          25        confusing.  We simply are trying to clean that  



                                                                        14 
 
 
 
           1        up. 
 
           2                  The second thing we're trying to do 
 
           3        here is to distinguish between in-state 
 
           4        providers of training.  Whether -- and really 
 
           5        you're looking at private vendors in these 
 
           6        cases, but -- and distinguish them from 
 
           7        providers who are based outside of the state. 
 
           8                  In this proposal there are no 
 
           9        changes for in-state providers at all.  But 
 
          10        for out-of-state providers we're looking to 
 
          11        simply require that they be nationally 
 
          12        certified.  The reason we'd like to do this -- 
 
          13        and there's a program called National 
 
          14        Certification for Law Enforcement courses that 
 
          15        almost every vendor is well aware of. 
 
          16                  A majority of states now accept NCP 
 
          17        for POST units.  Several states have already 
 
          18        changed their regulation to require NCP for 
 
          19        out-of-state venders.  And we'd like to do the 
 
          20        same thing. 
 
          21                  For us it's pretty simply:  We spend 
 
          22        a lot of staff time on law enforcement 
 
          23        trainers who are seeking to be certified in 
 
          24        Nevada.  It's a feather in their cap, I don't 
 
          25        know.  



                                                                        15 
 
 
 
           1                  The problem is we spend a lot of 
 
           2        time on it, and they never present the classes 
 
           3        in Nevada.  No Nevada officers attend.  It 
 
           4        gets frustrating.  They do it for their own -- 
 
           5        to boost their reputation and that kind of 
 
           6        thing. 
 
           7                  The second reason we'd like to do 
 
           8        this is:  Some of the really large training 
 
           9        providers that provide training for Nevada 
 
          10        officers all are moving towards national 
 
          11        certification, the National Certification 
 
          12        Program. 
 
          13                  So things like -- that we don't 
 
          14        currently accept because they don't apply for 
 
          15        certification here in Nevada; Northwestern, 
 
          16        FBI, NA, those kind of things, if we're able 
 
          17        to get this regulation changed, we'll be able 
 
          18        to automatically accept those training hours 
 
          19        for Nevada officers without forcing 
 
          20        Northwestern to submit all of these documents 
 
          21        to us. 
 
          22                  And so I think that's an advantage 
 
          23        for us.  You know, with NCP is copyrighted as 
 
          24        part of IADLEST.  They have a 10-year contract 
 
          25        with Envisage that maintains those records.  



                                                                        16 
 
 
 
           1        They are not going away, which was part of my 
 
           2        concern, they're here forever. 
 
           3                  They have the capability of tracking 
 
           4        and maintaining training records for every 
 
           5        officer in the country.  The advantage of that 
 
           6        is for an officer, those training records are 
 
           7        portable.  So they'll be able to go from one 
 
           8        agency to the other and prove their training 
 
           9        and that kind of thing.  But for us, it's just 
 
          10        an easier way of vetting these out-of-state 
 
          11        vendors.  The criteria for getting a course 
 
          12        certified through NCP is a much higher 
 
          13        standard than ours anyway, so we're not losing 
 
          14        anything there, we're actually gaining 
 
          15        something. 
 
          16                  And everyone is moving to it, to be 
 
          17        honest with you anyway.  It's just a way for 
 
          18        us to move those into our state, that kind of 
 
          19        thing. 
 
          20                  So that's what we're trying to do in 
 
          21        terms of the advance training with this 
 
          22        workshop. 
 
          23             RON PIERINI:  Thanks, Mike.  Any 
 
          24        questions from commissioners?  How about the 
 
          25        public?  



                                                                        17 
 
 
 
           1             RUSS PEDERSEN:  (Inaudible).  Two 
 
           2        questions.  Russ Pedersen for the record. 
 
           3        One, I've never certified.  Is it a fairly 
 
           4        simple process; 30 days, 60 days, 90 days for 
 
           5        an outside vendor to certify that they're 
 
           6        class -- 
 
           7             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Excuse me.  Mike Sherlock 
 
           8        for the record.  Are you speaking through us 
 
           9        or through NCP? 
 
          10             RUSS PEDERSEN:  I'm more asking if you 
 
          11        know what that process is.  I mean, is any 
 
          12        outside vendors -- because we get outside 
 
          13        vendors that, you know, call us up and we ask 
 
          14        them, you know, what's your certification, et 
 
          15        cetera, et cetera. 
 
          16                  So obviously we'll have to point 
 
          17        them and say, if you are not -- and that's a 
 
          18        class we're interested in, and we certainly 
 
          19        want to get credit for our folks, you know, 
 
          20        we'll point them in this direction. 
 
          21                  Do you know if that -- offhand? 
 
          22             MIKE SHERLOCK:  I do.  Mike Sherlock 
 
          23        again for the record.  What currently happens 
 
          24        right now, I think we've done perhaps too good 
 
          25        a job on this, so if they call Beth, for  



                                                                        18 
 
 
 
           1        example, and they're an out-of-state -- or 
 
           2        they're a vendor of police training, what 
 
           3        happens now is your training center will point 
 
           4        them towards us. 
 
           5                  Now, there is no guarantee that they 
 
           6        are actually going to come to the training 
 
           7        center, and that's what happens with us.  So 
 
           8        we have staff that has to -- by the regulation 
 
           9        there are certain documents that have to be 
 
          10        provided to us.  So we have to review that. 
 
          11        It's a whole process.  Right now we strive to 
 
          12        do that within 30 days, we don't always 
 
          13        accomplish that. 
 
          14                  But again, the frustrating part is 
 
          15        they're being forced to us, and yet they end 
 
          16        up never putting the class on when we certify 
 
          17        them. 
 
          18             RUSS PEDERSEN:  So Russ Pedersen again, 
 
          19        my apologies.  I didn't ask my question right. 
 
          20        But as far as the national, once the company 
 
          21        contacts the nationals -- International 
 
          22        Director of Law Enforcement, how long does it 
 
          23        take from their end to get that certification; 
 
          24        do you have any clue? 
 
          25             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the  



                                                                        19 
 
 
 
           1        record.  Yeah, their turnaround they strive 
 
           2        for is 30 days, also, just like us.  Now, 
 
           3        there is a cost.  But in my opinion that's a 
 
           4        good way of vetting some of these providers, 
 
           5        so if they're truly interested in quality law 
 
           6        enforcement training, they pay the fee.  And 
 
           7        it's $1,200. 
 
           8             RUSS PEDERSEN:  Okay. 
 
           9             MIKE SHERLOCK:  But it's an advantage to 
 
          10        us because we know the hoops that they've 
 
          11        jumped through.  We've worked out with NCPS a 
 
          12        system where -- because there is some issues 
 
          13        just so everyone knows that -- NCP will also 
 
          14        certify basic training, we will not.  So right 
 
          15        now what we're looking at with NCP is, they 
 
          16        are going to provide a list monthly to us. 
 
          17        It's not a big list, not a lot of time for us 
 
          18        anyway, and those that meet our advance 
 
          19        training criteria will automatically be 
 
          20        certified by us and be given a Nevada number, 
 
          21        which the vendor then must provide to Nevada 
 
          22        officers who attend. 
 
          23                  So the system is already in place, 
 
          24        they are all automated, and they are ready to 
 
          25        go.  



                                                                        20 
 
 
 
           1             RUSS PEDERSEN:  And then the second 
 
           2        question -- again, Russ Pedersen -- is:  Do 
 
           3        you anticipate -- unless I missed it.  I don't 
 
           4        see a starting date, you know, effective date 
 
           5        that says -- so do you anticipate those past 
 
           6        courses will get certified and then now you're 
 
           7        going to give them to law enforcement officers 
 
           8        and say, that's certified, it's the same 
 
           9        course, are you guys going to give them credit 
 
          10        now? 
 
          11                  So I don't know if -- do you 
 
          12        anticipate that or should there be an 
 
          13        effective date starting from this date forward 
 
          14        that only applies, or if people are going to 
 
          15        push and say, hey, let's proactively do that? 
 
          16             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
          17        record.  We did think about this.  In looking 
 
          18        at our records at this point, I don't see a 
 
          19        big problem with it.  Frankly, right now with 
 
          20        NCP, only the very large, well known providers 
 
          21        are certified. 
 
          22                  So certainly for us -- let's say 
 
          23        Northwestern gets theirs done -- and we don't 
 
          24        have them in our system anyway, so officers 
 
          25        will be able to get credit for that once they  



                                                                        21 
 
 
 
           1        are certified without a problem.  So that is 
 
           2        the advantage there. 
 
           3                  Outside vendors that we currently 
 
           4        have in our system that are not NCP are 
 
           5        dropping off anyway.  You know, for us if 
 
           6        they're not -- no Nevada officer attends for 
 
           7        two years that drops off our radar 
 
           8        theoretically is removed from our system.  So 
 
           9        we don't see a big issue with that in terms of 
 
          10        numbers or anything like that.  I think we'll 
 
          11        be fine. 
 
          12             RUSS PEDERSEN:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
          13             RON PIERINI:  Good questions, thank you. 
 
          14        Anyone else have any questions? 
 
          15             DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts for the record.  So 
 
          16        this will be really cost effective also for 
 
          17        your staff and save a lot of time and everything, 
 
          18        correct? 
 
          19             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
          20        record.  Yeah, absolutely.  I mean, you know 
 
          21        again, for us it's frustrating these vendors 
 
          22        want to get certified just to have that on 
 
          23        their website that Nevada POST certified them, 
 
          24        and yet they're not coming to Nevada, you 
 
          25        know, so.  And again, we're not the only  



                                                                        22 
 
 
 
           1        state.  There's many states that in some form 
 
           2        really regulate out-of-state vendors. 
 
           3                  And states are now -- Michigan just 
 
           4        did it, I think Minnesota is in the process of 
 
           5        writing a regulation almost exactly like ours. 
 
           6        If you're an out-of-state vendor, you just 
 
           7        simply have to show NCP and we're good to go. 
 
           8             RON PIERINI:  Okay.  Anybody else?  Open 
 
           9        to the public.  Okay.  Good.   
 
          10                  Going to the next part, we’re 
 
          11        actually going to have that scheduled meeting.   
 
          12        One of the things I didn't mention -- and 
 
          13        Scott was to -- August 30th, make sure this          
 
          14        is out to the public and we're to give this  
 
          15        information to certain locations within the 
 
          16        state of Nevada that we're having this 
 
          17        meeting. 
 
          18             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 
 
          19        record.  When noticing of this workshop in the 
 
          20        upcoming commission meeting that we're going 
 
          21        to get into in a few minutes, was posted at 
 
          22        the POST Administrative Office in Carson City; 
 
          23        Nevada State Capitol in Carson City; Blasdel 
 
          24        State Building in Carson City; Nevada State 
 
          25        Library and Archives in Carson City; Grant  



                                                                        23 
 
 
 
           1        Sawyer Building in Las Vegas; Carson City 
 
           2        Sheriff's Office; White Pine County Sheriff's 
 
           3        Office; POST website at post.nv.gov; at the 
 
           4        State posting website at notice.nv.gov; and it 
 
           5        was e-mailed to all law enforcement agency 
 
           6        point of contacts that we have listed in our 
 
           7        database all in conformance with NRS 
 
           8        241.020(4). 
 
           9             RON PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott. 
 
          10        Okay, let’s go with number 1, if I can.  We 
 
          11        can start with discussion and public comment 
 
          12        for possible action. 
 
          13                  Approval of the minutes from the 
 
          14        February 9th, 2017 regularly scheduled POST 
 
          15        commission meeting. 
 
          16                  And the commissioners and everybody, 
 
          17        I'm sure has taken the time to look at that. 
 
          18        Is there any kind of errors that you saw or 
 
          19        you want to add to it?  Or any kind of 
 
          20        confusion? 
 
          21                  All right.  I'm not sure that 
 
          22        anybody from the public read that.  If there 
 
          23        is, you're welcome to come up.  Seeing that so 
 
          24        what we want to go for an agenda item. 
 
          25        Were there --  



                                                                        24 
 
 
 
           1             RUSS PEDERSEN:  Russ Pedersen, move to 
 
           2        approve. 
 
           3             GARY SCHOFIELD:  Gary Schofield, second. 
 
           4             RON PIERINI:  Any other questions or 
 
           5        comments?        
 
           6                  All in favor? 
 
           7             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
           8             RON PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you very much. 
 
           9        Number 2 is information and Mike Sherlock. 
 
          10             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
          11        record.  I hear the memorial is not until 1:00 
 
          12        so I have plenty of time, right? 
 
          13             RON PIERINI:  Right. 
 
          14             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Because you know I love 
 
          15        to talk (laughter). 
 
          16                  No, I -- just a quick update on 
 
          17        what's going on with POST staff here. 
 
          18                  First, as most of you know, 
 
          19        Rick Radecki recently passed away.  Rick was 
 
          20        an administrative assistant here at POST.  He 
 
          21        had quickly become, I don't know, the voice of 
 
          22        POST.  He was often the point of contact and 
 
          23        was a person the agencies contacted and sought 
 
          24        out for a whole variety of issues. 
 

25                  We at first want to thank everyone



                                                                                                       
25 

 
 
 
           1        for the kind words and the condolences we 
 
           2        received from throughout Nevada.  Rick is also 
 
           3        known for singing the National Anthem at our 
 
           4        graduation.  This month his daughter, 
 
           5        Michaela, is actually going to sing the 
 
           6        National Anthem in honor of her dad, so those 
 
           7        who will be at the graduation will get to hear 
 
           8        it. 
 
           9                  Rick will truly be missed here at 
 
          10        POST. 
 
          11                  So just a quick update.  From the 
 
          12        training division we have new performance 
 
          13        objectives that were just published -- 
 
          14        actually we have had a little glitch when they 
 
          15        first went out, the file got corrupted but 
 
          16        they are back on our website, so I really want 
 
          17        to thank the agencies that assisted in looking 
 
          18        at those subjects and those objectives. 
 
          19                  You know at POST we really do 
 
          20        strive -- despite some of the rhetoric we hear 
 
          21        out there -- you know, to not create any sort 
 
          22        of mandates or training in a vacuum.  We 
 
          23        really rely on agencies to help us on -- and 
 
          24        it's sometimes difficult simply to get the 
 
          25        experts that we need to contribute and  



                                                                        26 
 
 
 
           1        participate.  Everybody is busy, we get that, 
 
           2        but that said throughout this process -- and 
 
           3        just recently we had a range training 
 
           4        workgroup show up.  I really want to thank 
 
           5        who -- who have come up several times, in 
 
           6        particular Metro, Henderson PD, Nye county was 
 
           7        here, Washoe County, Reno PD, the Department 
 
           8        of Corrections -- all sent people up here, and 
 
           9        we'll be going down there in July in another 
 
          10        meeting related to this, but -- Douglas 
 
          11        County, everybody sent -- a lot of people sent 
 
          12        people and we really, truly appreciate that. 
 
          13        That's -- we just end up with a better product 
 
          14        if everybody will get their input in. 
 
          15                  Our staff just completed a total 
 
          16        revamp and update of our basic instructor 
 
          17        development program.  We have a couple -- 
 
          18        we're really happy with it, by the way -- we 
 
          19        have a couple of classes coming up here in the 
 
          20        near future, both of those are full.  And we 
 
          21        have a waiting list for more classes already 
 
          22        on that, so we're pretty happy with that. 
 
          23                  One area that we really -- in terms 
 
          24        of training that we're trying to expand, with 
 
          25        or without a budget, is our advance training.  



                                                                        27 
 
 
 
           1        And particularly specialized unit training. 
 
           2        We're currently in development of a basic 
 
           3        detective course.  We try to keep it at one 
 
           4        week is our goal now, because we know Nevada 
 
           5        gets nervous about two weeks so we're trying 
 
           6        to keep it at one week.  Again, we have a lot 
 
           7        of agencies helping with that.  We'll be 
 
           8        calling it the Core Course in terms of 
 
           9        investigations, and then we'll expand from 
 
          10        there. 
 
          11                  We'd like to do sexual assault basic 
 
          12        training, homicide basic training classes, 
 
          13        that kind of thing.  So we're working on 
 
          14        those.  And again, we appreciate the help 
 
          15        we're getting from agencies across the state 
 
          16        on those. 
 
          17                  Finally we do have an academy 
 
          18        graduation on May 18th, the 18th of this 
 
          19        month.  Everyone is invited.  We are proud to 
 
          20        announce Chief Pedersen, one of our 
 
          21        commissioners, will be the keynote speaker at 
 
          22        that graduation on the 18th.  Those that can 
 
          23        attend, we'd love to see you there. 
 
          24                  On the standards side of things 
 
          25        we're obviously still waiting for the NAC  



                                                                        28 
 
 
 
           1        updates that the Commission approved last 
 
           2        meeting to return from LCB.  As you know, 
 
           3        they're in legislative session, we won't see 
 
           4        those for a while. 
 
           5                  Again we have another quick workshop 
 
           6        today.  We continue to look at our regulations 
 
           7        to make sure they fit our needs, fit Nevada's 
 
           8        needs, they're understandable, that kind of 
 
           9        thing, so we'll continue to review those as 
 
          10        time goes on. 
 
          11                  We are looking at ways to reach out 
 
          12        to agencies in specific areas.  One of the 
 
          13        areas of constant concern for us is the 
 
          14        one-year rule in terms of certification. 
 
          15                  The question for POST becomes:  What 
 
          16        do we do where we're aware of an individual 
 
          17        that has not met the one-year requirement and 
 
          18        they're still working?  Our response has been 
 
          19        we simply send out letters to those agencies 
 
          20        advising them, you know, as we get close to 
 
          21        allow them to either come to the Commission 
 
          22        and ask for an extension, or frankly, 
 
          23        terminate that person.  There is not a lot of 
 
          24        options when it comes to that one-year 
 
          25        requirement.  So we're just trying to be  



                                                                        29 
 
 
 
           1        consistent on that.  And I think we'll 
 
           2        continue what we're doing with the letters and 
 
           3        notifying agencies they're coming up on that 
 
           4        one-year time. 
 
           5                  What people fail to understand is 
 
           6        that under the statutes, once the one year 
 
           7        hits, the person in the peace officer position 
 
           8        is prohibited from exercising peace officer 
 
           9        powers.  Clearly it puts an agency in a 
 
          10        position of liability.  We want to do what we 
 
          11        can to help the agencies to understand that. 
 
          12                  That being said, we are seeing a 
 
          13        better trend, we're seeing agencies that are 
 
          14        frankly, not putting people on the street that 
 
          15        haven't at least been through the academy and 
 
          16        met the basic requirements, which we like. 
 
          17        But we're just trying to reach out on that. 
 
          18                  And the other area is reciprocity. 
 
          19        There is a lot of confusion in what 
 
          20        reciprocity is.  We're looking at ways to 
 
          21        again continue educating agencies. 
 
          22        Reciprocity is not about training.  That's the 
 
          23        biggest confusion.  Reciprocity is about 
 
          24        experience.  We will honor another state's 
 
          25        certified officer based on that experience,  



                                                                        30 
 
 
 
           1        not on training. 
 
           2                  So the one thing I'll say on some of 
 
           3        these things is we have completed our 
 
           4        administrative manual.  This information is 
 
           5        readily available on our website, and we 
 
           6        encourage agencies to get on there and look it 
 
           7        up.  It's there and easy to check, 
 
           8        particularly with reciprocity and that kind of 
 
           9        thing.  We just simply want agencies to 
 
          10        understand those rules so we don't get caught 
 
          11        in the middle when they try to get someone 
 
          12        certified that is not eligible for 
 
          13        reciprocity. 
 
          14                  On the administrative side of things 
 
          15        we continue to deal with the public record 
 
          16        requests.  Mostly dealing with bad actors, 
 
          17        officer revocations, that kind of thing.  I do 
 
          18        believe we will start to see that calm down in 
 
          19        today's climate.  That may be wishful thinking 
 
          20        but we get a lot of those. 
 
          21                  Along those lines we may look to the 
 
          22        Commission at a future date to consider an 
 
          23        update on NACs related to suspensions and 
 
          24        revocations.  One area of concern for me is -- 
 
          25        and recently we've had some issues of  



                                                                        31 
 
 
 
           1        state-wide interest related to certified 
 
           2        officers and alleged illegal activity. 
 
           3                  And usually what happens is a 
 
           4        certified officer is arrested, for example, 
 
           5        for heroin purchasing or homicide.  And the 
 
           6        media will contact us with information 
 
           7        requests, inquiring as to what action has been 
 
           8        taken on that certificate.  And the problem 
 
           9        for me is -- is our answer, because of our 
 
          10        current regulation is -- their certificate is 
 
          11        in good standing. 
 
          12                  It just places POST, I think, in a 
 
          13        bad light.  Where they know the guy has been 
 
          14        arrested and charged with murder for instance, 
 
          15        and yet we're saying the certificate is in 
 
          16        good standing.  And again I'm just, you know 
 
          17        maybe at a future date we may ask the 
 
          18        Commission to look at -- and believe me, I do 
 
          19        not want to take any of the powers of the 
 
          20        Commission, but there may be some limited 
 
          21        parameters working with Mike Jensen on the 
 
          22        ability to suspend, pending the next 
 
          23        commission meeting, where we have very 
 
          24        specific set of facts.  It's just something 
 
          25        I've thought -- we've been thinking about with  



                                                                        32 
 
 
 
           1        the media inquires as to these officers that 
 
           2        have been arrested for some pretty heinous 
 
           3        crimes and their certificate is still good 
 
           4        until that next commission meeting, sometimes 
 
           5        longer than that based on circumstances.  So 
 
           6        what it is that -- that just has come up from 
 
           7        our standpoint, but it's something to think 
 
           8        about. 
 
           9                  Finally in terms of legislation, 
 
          10        there are a few bills of concern out there. 
 
          11        We've made our position known, for what's it's 
 
          12        worth.  Were not real hopeful that our 
 
          13        position is given much weight on some of these 
 
          14        bills, but we'll leave it at that at this 
 
          15        point, the session is still -- obviously 
 
          16        they're still in session, the Legislature. 
 
          17                  In terms of our budget, we close our 
 
          18        budget next week.  I will say at this point 
 
          19        despite some of the meetings and posturing, as 
 
          20        it stands our budget is -- there's no change, 
 
          21        in fact it's a slight decrease in our budget 
 
          22        compared to this biennium at this point.  That 
 
          23        said, we'll continue to do the best we can 
 
          24        with what we have, and we continue to look at 
 
          25        creative ways of providing more and we'll  



                                                                        33 
 
 
 
           1        continue to do that.  That's POST. 
 
           2             RON PIERINI:  Okay.  Thanks Mike.  Any 
 
           3        questions for the Commission? 
 
           4             RUSS PETERSEN:  Just more 
 
           5        comments.  The first one coming up on one 
 
           6        year, I would like to commend you and your 
 
           7        staff.  I think you guys have really held that 
 
           8        standard.  And I think this commission, at 
 
           9        least in my experience, is more than 
 
          10        reasonable on that extension or at least that 
 
          11        first extension if they come forward and they 
 
          12        talk to us.  So I appreciate, and I think we 
 
          13        have -- do have a need to continue with that 
 
          14        standard and not change from that, because 
 
          15        unfortunately some people will take advantage 
 
          16        of any loophole they can.  So kudos to you and 
 
          17        your staff. 
 
          18                  And the second one is:  I do -- 
 
          19        you've piqued my interest.  I would like to be 
 
          20        part of that discussion if the Chairman will 
 
          21        allow me or even from an agency standpoint 
 
          22        about looking at giving you guys a little more 
 
          23        authority or some type of ability to suspend a 
 
          24        POST on an arrest or on something that is 
 
          25        that -- sometimes we're locked in with  



                                                                        34 
 
 
 
           1        contracts and some other things, and I think 
 
           2        from a POST standpoint you're that check and 
 
           3        balance, that independent review, and I think 
 
           4        that's important that you guys have that 
 
           5        authority, so I'd like to be part of that 
 
           6        discussion. 
 
           7                  I think we should all be encouraged 
 
           8        to -- especially in our times.  It will kind 
 
           9        of help the public use, so I appreciate it. 
 
          10             RON PIERINI:  I think one of the things, 
 
          11        too is over the last several years, we've 
 
          12        given more authority to the executive 
 
          13        director, and I think it's been a real plus. 
 
          14        I think they know what's going on better than 
 
          15        any of us, naturally. 
 
          16                  And I think we agree, we certainly 
 
          17        think you've done a great job and even with 
 
          18        Dick Clark, he -- he was given more authority 
 
          19        and it seems like it's a better system. 
 
          20                  I'm certainly in favor of that.  My 
 
          21        only question I have for you is this:  We only 
 
          22        have two academies per year.  Is that causing 
 
          23        some of the problems where we're going to have 
 
          24        to extend that all of the time for six more 
 
          25        months because there is no more.  



                                                                        35 
 
 
 
           1        (inaudible) -- to be able to go to.  Is that 
 
           2        possible? 
 
           3             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
           4        record.  Well, from a budget standpoint, no 
 
           5        more academies are possible for us, I can tell 
 
           6        you that.  But I think that we're okay from 
 
           7        that stand -- I think that implementing the, 
 
           8        kind of, the standby for agencies to make sure 
 
           9        that we don't have empty seats. 
 
          10                  I don't see a major issue with it. 
 
          11        What we suggest -- we try to track these new 
 
          12        hires and give agencies as much notice as we 
 
          13        can and remind them that, you know, if you get 
 
          14        in front of the Commission prior to the 
 
          15        expiration of the year, it's much easier for 
 
          16        the Commission to find good cause for one, and 
 
          17        it gives us that chance to get them in 
 
          18        there -- get them into the academy. 
 
          19                  So to your question as far as is the 
 
          20        reason the year is expiring is we can't get 
 
          21        them into the academy?  I don't think so.  I 
 
          22        think we'd like to educate agencies more about 
 
          23        hire dates and when they hire. 
 
          24                  We're in a discussion with an agency 
 
          25        right now where, you know, what do they do  



                                                                        36 
 
 
 
           1        with the person leading up to the academy?  I 
 
           2        don't know why you don't do a conditional job 
 
           3        offer -- or a job offer with the start date of 
 
           4        one day before the academy, or the academy 
 
           5        date, and try to do a better plan -- a better 
 
           6        job of planning in terms of hiring.  We're 
 
           7        working with agencies from that perspective 
 
           8        where they can do their orientation leading up 
 
           9        to it, whatever it may be. 
 
          10                  So I don't think it's that our 
 
          11        academies are full, I think it's a different 
 
          12        issue. 
 
          13             RON PIERINI:  Well, one of the problems, 
 
          14        though, Mike is this:  Trying to get new 
 
          15        employees is a very difficult process for I 
 
          16        think everybody in this room. 
 
          17                  When we have the ability to say, 
 
          18        yeah, I'm ready to go, and the sheriff's 
 
          19        departments around Nevada has a better -- an 
 
          20        easier way than they do with chief of police 
 
          21        areas, okay? 
 
          22                  That is a sense, yeah, you want to 
 
          23        come to work, put you in the jail?  You can do 
 
          24        your Category III there.  We can move and find 
 
          25        out exactly what our organization is.  We  



                                                                        37 
 
 
 
           1        don't want to let go of them, that's what I'm 
 
           2        trying to say. 
 
           3             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Sure. 
 
           4             RON PIERINI:  So the next one comes to me, 
 
           5        it's going to be three months from now, geez 
 
           6        Dan Watts is open right now, I'm going there. 
 
           7                  And they're going to do that to us, 
 
           8        so that's why we have that kind of problem, so 
 
           9        I just give that for -- 
 
          10             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock here.  We 
 
          11        do understand -- we're looking at it from an 
 
          12        academy perspective.  We understand that. 
 
          13             RON PIERINI:  I only have one more 
 
          14        question, and then I'll be quiet.  If you have 
 
          15        more than two people in your agency that needs 
 
          16        to go to that academy, let's say for example 
 
          17        because all of the turnover that most of us 
 
          18        have gone through.  There may be four people 
 
          19        that want to do it.  And all of a sudden if 
 
          20        you go over 32, if I recall, or 30 something, 
 
          21        do you have a policy here to say that first 
 
          22        come, first serve or is it the most you can 
 
          23        have is two until we can add it on? 
 
          24             MIKE SHERLOCK:  I'd have to go back -- 
 
          25        Mike Sherlock for the record.  I have to go  



                                                                        38 
 
 
 
           1        back and read the policy exactly how we have 
 
           2        it right now.  But there is.  It is first and 
 
           3        foremost are the rurals, because that's who we 
 
           4        serve, that's our priority.  And so I think we 
 
           5        have it -- I don't know if Scott knows -- but 
 
           6        I think we would allow three, but you can 
 
           7        put -- what we're suggesting, which has worked 
 
           8        very well for us, if you hire four and we say 
 
           9        you can only have three, we do have 
 
          10        alternates. 
 
          11                  So you -- as you know, day one we 
 
          12        lose people every single time.  And so this 
 
          13        last time we had some agencies that went over 
 
          14        their -- you know, it was full, they got their 
 
          15        three spots, but they had more.  They sent 
 
          16        their fourth one as an alternate and other 
 
          17        people got in.  So that's what we're seeing 
 
          18        right now is -- in most cases everybody is 
 
          19        getting all of their people in when they want 
 
          20        them in based on that alternate, and sending 
 
          21        them here and that kind of thing. 
 
          22                  But there is a priority list.  It's 
 
          23        on our website.  We've strengthened that rule. 
 
          24        We need the information 30 days out.  And in 
 
          25        the past we've had people reserve spots, you  



                                                                        39 
 
 
 
           1        know, kind of the good ole boy theory and they 
 
           2        weren't sending their people, the person's not 
 
           3        ready. 
 
           4                  So what we require now 30 days out 
 
           5        is at least a name and some of the 
 
           6        documentation, so we're fairly comfortable 
 
           7        that that person is going to show up. 
 
           8                  And then by priority.  Rurals and, 
 
           9        you know, goes all the way down the list to 
 
          10        tribal. 
 
          11             RON PIERINI:  I think one other question 
 
          12        that maybe you're going to be asked is -- and 
 
          13        that is the fact that you have two people are 
 
          14        coming, just say that.  The second day that 
 
          15        he's in the academy he -- or the third day -- 
 
          16        he falls over and his leg breaks or something 
 
          17        else, or he decides, I don't like this or 
 
          18        whatever it might be. 
 
          19                  Then I immediately want to pick up 
 
          20        the phone and I have number three, let me give 
 
          21        him to you, then that doesn't work because 
 
          22        what they do is -- if what I'm hearing from 
 
          23        you is the first day you got to be there. 
 
          24                  Can you -- is there a time period, 
 
          25        after three days you can't let nobody else in  



                                                                        40 
 
 
 
           1        there, how does that -- 
 
           2             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Well, there -- Mike 
 
           3        Sherlock for the record.  There is lot of 
 
           4        things that play into that.  That is the 
 
           5        problem.  Day one is our entrance, physical 
 
           6        fitness test.  Based on our scheduling, it's 
 
           7        very difficult for us to get -- to change 
 
           8        that.  So if you sent someone new, now we have 
 
           9        to slide in a separate physical fitness test 
 
          10        specifically for that person, which means now 
 
          11        that person is missing some of the instruction 
 
          12        that's required as part of the -- and again 
 
          13        we're getting a lot stuff crammed into that. 
 
          14                  The other issue though with that -- 
 
          15        well, there's a variety of them, but for us 
 
          16        you have to have uniforms.  And usually what 
 
          17        we're hearing is, you know, they're scrambling 
 
          18        to try to get uniforms so this person is not 
 
          19        really integrated into this class at all for 
 
          20        sometimes two or three weeks at a time while 
 
          21        they wait for the uniforms. 
 
          22                  And it just puts so much pressure on 
 
          23        our academy it's just not conducive to the 
 
          24        continuity of that particular class and that 
 
          25        kind of thing.  I mean, we've done it where  



                                                                        41 
 
 
 
           1        it's not a disruption but it's -- I can tell 
 
           2        you it's extremely difficult. 
 
           3                  The reason we're running these 
 
           4        alternates now, if someone gets injured like 
 
           5        you're talking about, it's usually not going 
 
           6        to be on day two, it's going to be on day one, 
 
           7        which it allows that alternate to quickly get 
 
           8        into the academy and we keep those seats full. 
 
           9                  Once you get past day one, maybe day 
 
          10        two a little bit, it's very difficult for us. 
 
          11        We just can't do it. 
 
          12             RON PIERINI:  And I have to mention as I 
 
          13        was doing everything I could to get him to go 
 
          14        my way.  (laughter) because I did have 
 
          15        somebody -- (laughter). 
 
          16             I just don't want you to be as  
 
          17        embarrassed as I was, okay. 
 
          18             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
          19        record.  And just so you know, Chairman -- I 
 
          20        think my nickname here is Monty Hall, because 
 
          21        of those things. 
 
          22                  You know, we try -- we have rules 
 
          23        for a reason, and we try to -- we try to stay 
 
          24        within those for the integrity of the 
 
          25        academy, if nothing else.  



                                                                        42 
 
 
 
           1             RON PIERINI:  You do a good job.  And I 
 
           2        think it's going very well -- 
 
           3             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Thank you. 
 
           4             RON PIERINI:  And you're doing a real 
 
           5        good job of it as the director and we're real 
 
           6        proud of you. 
 
           7                  Okay.  We're going to go on now to 
 
           8        Number 3.  This is the discussion, public 
 
           9        comment, and for possible action.  This is a 
 
          10        discussion possibly take action to continue 
 
          11        the rule-making process. 
 
          12                  I want to start with A first, if we 
 
          13        could.  And that is reservation of NAC 289.230 
 
          14        subsection 5(a) which clarifies the term 
 
          15        "firearm" to include wording for the firearm 
 
          16        type. 
 
          17                  Section 7(d) which is when an 
 
          18        officer is hired, rehired, or reinstated, on 
 
          19        or after July 1 of the reporting year, they 
 
          20        must satisfy the requirements of paragraphs 
 
          21        (b) and (e) inclusively, of subsection 5 and 
 
          22        show proficiency in the use of each firearm 
 
          23        type he or she is authorized to use before 
 
          24        resuming his or her duties as a peace officer. 
 
          25                  So Mike, you're up again.  



                                                                        43 
 
 
 
           1             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
           2        record.  We're simply trying to clean up that 
 
           3        yearly maintenance training as you heard in 
 
           4        the workshop.  I think it's a fairly minor 
 
           5        change to that regulation, and I'd be happy to 
 
           6        answer any questions that came up since the 
 
           7        workshop. 
 
           8             RON PIERINI:  Thank you.  Questions? 
 
           9             MIKE JENSEN:  For the record, just to 
 
          10        clarify on this one -- this is just an action 
 
          11        that continues the rule-making process.  It 
 
          12        wouldn't be any adoption or anything like 
 
          13        that? 
 
          14             RON PIERINI:  No. 
 
          15             MIKE JENSEN:  Okay. 
 
          16             RON PIERINI:  So does anybody have 
 
          17        questions or comments?  We've been through it 
 
          18        a couple of times, we're okay I think.  If 
 
          19        (inaudible) if anybody here like to go ahead. 
 
          20                  I think -- isn't it true, Mike, we 
 
          21        probably ought to do a possible action on that 
 
          22        Number A? 
 
          23             MIKE JENSEN:  That would make sense. 
 
          24             RON PIERINI:  All right.  I think we 
 
          25        should do that.  So may I have somebody here  



                                                                        44 
 
 
 
           1        to -- 
 
           2             TROY TANNER:  Troy Tanner, I make a 
 
           3        motion to move forward on the rule-making 
 
           4        process. 
 
           5             RON PIERINI:  We don't need to say it 
 
           6        again, do we? 
 
           7             TROY TANNER:  I don't think so. 
 
           8             RON PIERINI:  Thank you, chief.  Do we 
 
           9        have a second? 
 
          10             MICHELE FREEMAN:  Michelle Freeman, I'll 
 
          11        second. 
 
          12             RON PIERINI:  Thank you very much.  Any 
 
          13        other comments, questions?  All in favor? 
 
          14             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
          15             RON PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  Okay. So 
 
          16        carried, thank you. 
 
          17                  We're going to go to B now.  That's 
 
          18        NAC 289.310 subsections 1 through 9, 
 
          19        requirements for certification by a provider 
 
          20        of training located outside the state of 
 
          21        Nevada. 
 
          22                  This change would require the 
 
          23        provider to have their programs certified by 
 
          24        the International Directors of Law Enforcement 
 
          25        Standards and Training, National Certification  



                                                                        45 
 
 
 
           1        Program. 
 
           2                  Mike? 
 
           3             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
           4        record.  Again, if you have questions after 
 
           5        the workshop, I can answer those.  To support 
 
           6        Mike Jensen, I would say we would recommend 
 
           7        that the Commission move forward under the 
 
           8        rule-making process to clarify the language in 
 
           9        289.310, which deals with advanced training 
 
          10        certification. 
 
          11             RON PIERINI:  Okay.  Any questions? 
 
          12        Anything from the public?  Looking for a 
 
          13        motion. 
 
          14             KEVIN MCKINNEY:  Kevin McKinney, I move 
 
          15        we go forward with this. 
 
          16             RON PIERINI:  Thank you, Kevin.  Do I 
 
          17        have a second? 
 
          18             DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, I second it. 
 
          19             RON PIERINI:  Any other questions?  Okay, 
 
          20        all in favor? 
 
          21             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
          22             RON PIERINI:  We got yours over there, 
 
          23        too. 
 
          24                  All right.  Number 4.  This is 
 
          25        dealing with discussion, public comment, and  



                                                                        46 
 
 
 
           1        for possible action.  Request from the 
 
           2        Mesquite Police Department for their employee, 
 
           3        Captain Joseph Chesley -- and I've got that 
 
           4        certificate right here, that's good -- for an 
 
           5        executive certificate.  So I guess, Mike, 
 
           6        you're on that, too. 
 
           7             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
           8        record.  I'm going to defer to Scott.  He's 
 
           9        got the facts on that. 
 
          10             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 
 
          11        record.  We received an application from 
 
          12        Mesquite Police Department requesting the 
 
          13        executive certificate for Captain Chesley. 
 
          14                  He has met the certification 
 
          15        requirements; basic, intermediate, advanced, 
 
          16        supervisor and management certificate, and 
 
          17        he's met the training requirements for the 
 
          18        certificate.  He holds a position in the 
 
          19        agency, meeting the position of an upper 
 
          20        management command level responsibilities. 
 
          21                  And he's fulfilled all of the 
 
          22        requirements of the executive certificate. 
 
          23        The POST review committee that reviews all 
 
          24        executive certificates before we bring them 
 
          25        before the Commission has reviewed this  



                                                                        47 
 
 
 
           1        application and it's that committee's 
 
           2        recommendation for approval. 
 
           3             RON PIERINI:  Thanks Scott.  Chief, would 
 
           4        you like to say anything? 
 
           5             TROY TANNER:  No, I was just reading it. 
 
           6        I haven't seen it in a while, we've been busy 
 
           7        (laughter).  I forgot I even signed that one. 
 
           8             MIKE SHERLOCK:  I'll brief you. 
 
           9             TROY TANNER:  No.  He's one of my two 
 
          10        management guys.  I have a deputy chief and 
 
          11        the captain, so that's all we have in the 
 
          12        administration of my department, so from 
 
          13        chief, to deputy chief, to captain, that's 
 
          14        about it.  (inaudible) a sergeant -- he's done 
 
          15        a great job.  Thank you. 
 
          16             RON PIERINI:  Is Joseph here? 
 
          17             TROY TANNER:  No, he's not. 
 
          18             RON PIERINI:  Does anybody have questions 
 
          19        or -- all right.  How about the public?  All 
 
          20        right.  Looking for a motion. 
 
          21             JIM WRIGHT:  Move to approve. 
 
          22             RON PIERINI:  Thank you, James. 
 
          23             GARY SCHOFIELD:  Second. 
 
          24             RON PIERINI:  Gary, I got to give it to 
 
          25        Gary there.  All in favor?  



                                                                        48 
 
 
 
           1             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
           2             RON PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  So 
 
           3        carried.  All right.  Then we've got that 
 
           4        certificate here and I guess Scott, what we 
 
           5        can do is give this to Chief here. 
 
           6             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Sure. 
 
           7             RON PIERINI:  Thank you. 
 
           8             TROY TANNER:  Thank you. 
 
           9             RON PIERINI:  Number 5.  Hearing pursuant 
 
          10        to NAC 289.290(1)(g)(h) on the revocation of 
 
          11        Andrew Denning, formally of the Nye County 
 
          12        Sheriff's Office, certified based on a plea of 
 
          13        no contest to a misdemeanor and a guilty plea 
 
          14        agreement to a felony.  And what we need to do 
 
          15        is talk about the Basic Certificate.  Mike 
 
          16        Jensen? 
 
          17             MIKE JENSEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
          18        This is the time and place scheduled.  We've 
 
          19        done a few of these in the past, but I'll just 
 
          20        reiterate the authority of the Commission 
 
          21        working under this morning.  Under NRS 
 
          22        289.510, the Commission is given the authority 
 
          23        to adopt regulations that establish minimum 
 
          24        standards for certification and 
 
          25        decertification of peace officers.  



                                                                        49 
 
 
 
           1                  Pursuant to that authority, the POST 
 
           2        commission has established a cause to revoke 
 
           3        or refuse or suspend the certificate of a 
 
           4        peace officer.  This morning on this 
 
           5        particular item the sections that apply are 
 
           6        section (1)(h)(g) which provides that the 
 
           7        certificate may be revoked for a misdemeanor 
 
           8        conviction, at the request of an agency, can 
 
           9        mandate the revocation for a felony 
 
          10        conviction. 
 
          11                  I would point out to the Commission 
 
          12        that this is a little unusual in the sense 
 
          13        that this individual has not been certified by 
 
          14        the Commission yet, so there is no Basic 
 
          15        Certificate that you're -- would be revoking. 
 
          16                  The staff as asked that I move 
 
          17        forward on this particular item because of the 
 
          18        seriousness of the offenses to have the 
 
          19        Commission take action to basically refuse his 
 
          20        eligibility to be POST certified so that they 
 
          21        can get that into the system and make sure 
 
          22        that he can't be hired here or elsewhere as a 
 
          23        peace officer. 
 
          24                  So that is a little bit of wrinkle 
 
          25        on this particular hearing.  You will see in  



                                                                        50 
 
 
 
           1        your packets the certificates that I want to 
 
           2        go through really quickly this morning.  It 
 
           3        would be admitted in support of any action 
 
           4        taken by the Commission.  The first is Exhibit 
 
           5        A, which is just our normal Notice of Intent 
 
           6        to revoke or take action. 
 
           7                  Where the Commission is informed 
 
           8        Mr. Denning of his rights with regard to this 
 
           9        particular hearing.  The basis for the hearing 
 
          10        is the convictions that are being relied upon. 
 
          11        His right to appear and cross-examine 
 
          12        witnesses.  And the requirement that he inform 
 
          13        the Commission if he intends to appear, and 
 
          14        the scope of the hearing. 
 
          15                  It's my understanding that 
 
          16        Mr. Denning has not indicated to the 
 
          17        Commission that he intends to appear this 
 
          18        morning; is that correct? 
 
          19             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  That's correct. 
 
          20             MIKE JENSEN:  The second exhibit is 
 
          21        Exhibit B, which shows he has been served with 
 
          22        that -- personally served with that Notice on 
 
          23        March 21st of this year.  Showing that the 
 
          24        Commission has complied with all the Notice 
 
          25        requirements, both your statutes and 33(b).  



                                                                        51 
 
 
 
           1                  Certificate -- Exhibit D is a 
 
           2        certified copy of the criminal complaint. 
 
           3        There are two different charging documents in 
 
           4        this particular case because there was a 
 
           5        misdemeanor that went through the misdemeanor 
 
           6        process, and then there was a felony that went 
 
           7        through that felony process in a different 
 
           8        court, and that's why you've got two charging 
 
           9        documents. 
 
          10                  The first charging document is the 
 
          11        criminal complaint showing Mr. Denning was 
 
          12        charged with three criminal counts of assault 
 
          13        with a deadly weapon, a felony; child abuse or 
 
          14        neglect, a gross misdemeanor; and kidnapping, 
 
          15        a felony offense. 
 
          16                  Exhibit E is the certified copy of 
 
          17        the criminal complaint where Mr. Denning was 
 
          18        charged with a misdemeanor count of domestic 
 
          19        battery in violation of NRS 241 and 245 
 
          20        committed on or about March 27th, 2015. 
 
          21                  Exhibit F is his plea of waiver -- 
 
          22        his plea agreement, or waiver of plea on the 
 
          23        domestic violence charge in which he agreed to 
 
          24        plead guilty to that charge set out in the 
 
          25        criminal complaint.  



                                                                        52 
 
 
 
           1                  Exhibit G is the judgment of 
 
           2        conviction showing that he was convicted of 
 
           3        domestic battery, a misdemeanor with a fine 
 
           4        and a jail sentence, which was time served, 
 
           5        and an additional jail sentence that was 
 
           6        suspended contingent on completing all of the 
 
           7        requirements of his court imposed conditions. 
 
           8                  Exhibit H is a certified copy of the 
 
           9        information.  This on a criminal charge of 
 
          10        assault with a deadly weapon, a felony.  Again 
 
          11        committed on or about March 27th, 2015. 
 
          12                  It appears that the actions in this 
 
          13        particular case were actions taken against his 
 
          14        spouse, and in pointing a firearm at her in 
 
          15        the course of a confrontation and argument 
 
          16        with his wife. 
 
          17                  Exhibit I is the guilty plea 
 
          18        agreement where he has agreed to enter a 
 
          19        guilty plea to plead to assault with a deadly 
 
          20        weapon, not a felony. 
 
          21                  And Exhibit J shows that he was 
 
          22        convicted of assault with a deadly weapon and 
 
          23        sentenced to the Department of Corrections 
 
          24        with that sentence being suspended and him 
 
          25        being placed on a number of conditions,  



                                                                        53 
 
 
 
           1        probation as you see there on the judgment of 
 
           2        conviction, many of which are clearly 
 
           3        inconsistent with acting as a peace officer. 
 
           4                  So based on the evidence in those 
 
           5        documents and these particular convictions, 
 
           6        it's the recommendation that Mr. Denning's 
 
           7        peace officer eligibility be revoked.  And he 
 
           8        certainly has been involved in conduct that's 
 
           9        inconsistent with actions and activities of a 
 
          10        peace officer. 
 
          11                  So I would ask that those exhibits 
 
          12        be admitted, Mr. Chairman, as part of any 
 
          13        action that you would take related to this 
 
          14        commission. 
 
          15             RON PIERINI:  Thank you.  I appreciate 
 
          16        that and I do approve that.  I'm going to ask 
 
          17        the commissioners, any questions?  Any 
 
          18        comments? 
 
          19             KEVIN MCKINNEY:  I have a quick question. 
 
          20        Kevin McKinney for the record.  Well, since 
 
          21        this is kind of a unique situation, will he be 
 
          22        placed in the desertification database? 
 
          23             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 
 
          24        record.  Yes, he will. 
 
          25             KEVIN MCKINNEY:  Okay.  



                                                                        54 
 
 
 
           1             RUSS PEDERSEN:  Russ Pedersen, are we 
 
           2        revoking or are we refusing under 289, for 
 
           3        clarification?  Since he doesn't have a 
 
           4        certificate yet, are we refusing or sorry -- 
 
           5             MIKE JENSEN:  That's a good question. 
 
           6        I've gone through that as well.  We know the 
 
           7        Commission, I don't think, has done this very 
 
           8        often.  I can't think of the last time we've 
 
           9        done this.  But I think the authority to do it 
 
          10        would be under refuse as opposed to revoke 
 
          11        because there is nothing to revoke at this 
 
          12        point so we're refusing not an actual 
 
          13        application, I don't think he's applied for a 
 
          14        peace officer certification, so you're 
 
          15        basically refusing his eligibility to be a 
 
          16        peace officer. 
 
          17             RUSS PEDERSEN:  But for motion -- Russ 
 
          18        Pedersen -- but for motion purposes, it's -- 
 
          19        we're going to say refused? 
 
          20             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  I would say that would be 
 
          21        most appropriate. 
 
          22             RON PIERINI:  Okay.  Public?  Any 
 
          23        comments?  On his behalf is there anybody 
 
          24        here?  Okay. 
 
          25                  Russ, would you like to do a motion?   



                                                                        55 
 
 
 
           1             RUSS PEDERSEN:  I'll give it a shot.  I 
 
           2        move to refuse any future certificate -- I 
 
           3        guess applications that he may, I guess 
 
           4        attempt.  And sorry about that.  I'm botching 
 
           5        that. 
 
           6                  How about just move to refuse a 
 
           7        peace officer POST certificate; is that 
 
           8        better?  Will that work? 
 
           9             RON PIERINI:  That's pretty good.  Do I 
 
          10        have a second? 
 
          11             GARY SCHOFIELD:  Gary Schofield -- 
 
          12             RON PIERINI:  Go ahead.  Thank you. 
 
          13        Which one we got?  Thank you.  Any other 
 
          14        comments, questions or information? 
 
          15                  All in favor? 
 
          16             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
          17             RON PIERINI:  All right.  Thank you. 
 
          18        We're going to move with Number 6.  This one 
 
          19        is discussion, public comment, and for calls 
 
          20        for action.  Hearing pursuant to NAC 
 
          21        289.290(1)(e) on the revocation of Kenneth 
 
          22        Head, formerly of the Nevada Department of 
 
          23        Corrections, certification on a guilty plea, a 
 
          24        gross misdemeanor. 
 
          25                  The Commission will decide whether  



                                                                        56 
 
 
 
           1        to revoke Mr. Head's Category III, Basic 
 
           2        Certificate. 
 
           3                  Mr. Jensen. 
 
           4             MIKE JENSEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
           5        This one is a little bit easier because there 
 
           6        is an actual certificate that we're dealing 
 
           7        with here.  This is the time and place 
 
           8        scheduled for the hearing for potential 
 
           9        revocation of Mr. Head's Category III POST 
 
          10        certification. 
 
          11                  I won't reiterate the authority 
 
          12        under which you're moving except to the extent 
 
          13        to say that this is a revocation that would be 
 
          14        for a gross misdemeanor under 289.290 Section 
 
          15        (1)(h). 
 
          16                  The exhibits that you have in front 
 
          17        of you -- or should have in front of you -- 
 
          18        I'll just go through briefly and would ask at 
 
          19        the end be admitted as part of any action that 
 
          20        the Commission takes.  They are essentially 
 
          21        the same as the last hearing. 
 
          22                  Exhibit A is your Notice of Intent 
 
          23        to decertify Mr. Head with all of the 
 
          24        information about his rights in connection 
 
          25        within this hearing today, informing him of  



                                                                        57 
 
 
 
           1        his right to be present, and present evidence, 
 
           2        and cross-examine witnesses.  And the legal 
 
           3        requirement to inform the Commission if he 
 
           4        intended to be present today.  And it's my 
 
           5        understanding that Mr. Head has not indicated 
 
           6        any intent to be present; is that correct? 
 
           7             SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 
 
           8        record.  Yes, that is correct. 
 
           9             MIKE JENSEN:  Exhibit B is the Sheriff's 
 
          10        Return from the sheriff -- I think in the 
 
          11        state of Washington.  The state of Washington 
 
          12        who served Mr. Head personally with the Notice 
 
          13        of Intent to Revoke on April 3rd, 2017, 
 
          14        showing that the Commission has complied with 
 
          15        all of the legal requirements for notice under 
 
          16        232(b) and through regulations. 
 
          17                  Exhibit C is the personnel action 
 
          18        report showing Mr. Head's employment was 
 
          19        terminated as a peace officer here in the 
 
          20        state of Nevada. 
 
          21                  Exhibit D is his POST Category III 
 
          22        POST certification.  Exhibit E is the charging 
 
          23        document and there's a series, it looks like, 
 
          24        of three charging documents the last of which 
 
          25        is the one that he pled guilty to.  



                                                                        58 
 
 
 
           1                  He was originally charged as shown 
 
           2        in Exhibit E with 13 counts, and then 
 
           3        indictments of three different charges. 
 
           4        Multiple counts in those three different 
 
           5        charges.  The first was sexual assault on a 
 
           6        minor under 14 years of age, a felony; 
 
           7        lewdness with a child under the age of 14, a 
 
           8        felony; and child abuse, neglect or 
 
           9        endangerment, a category B felony. 
 
          10                  The amended Complaint, which is 
 
          11        Exhibit F, is essentially the same charges as 
 
          12        Exhibit E, so I won't go through those. 
 
          13                  Exhibit D is the thing that he 
 
          14        agreed to plead guilty to pursuant to Alford. 
 
          15        It is for -- and the second amended indictment 
 
          16        is for open or gross lewdness, a gross 
 
          17        misdemeanor.  Indicating that on or between 
 
          18        January 1st, 2003 and September 1st 2010, he 
 
          19        willfully and unlawfully touched an 
 
          20        individual, who I believe is a minor child, 
 
          21        we've crossed out the name of that individual 
 
          22        on the charging document. 
 
          23                  Exhibit H is the guilty plea 
 
          24        agreement, where he's agreeing to plead guilty 
 
          25        to that gross misdemeanor groping, and gross  



                                                                        59 
 
 
 
           1        lewdness.  And Exhibit I is the judgment of 
 
           2        conviction showing that he was convicted of 
 
           3        open or gross lewdness for those actions 
 
           4        identified in the second amended indictment. 
 
           5        He was sentenced in that case to time served. 
 
           6                  Again, Mr. Chairman, I would 
 
           7        indicate that the evidence in this case I 
 
           8        think shows pretty clearly conduct that is a 
 
           9        very serious nature.  It is inconsistent with 
 
          10        a person who is acting as a peace offer. 
 
          11                  His conditions are also inconsistent 
 
          12        with that.  And we would recommend to staff 
 
          13        that his POST certification be revoked and 
 
          14        those Exhibits A through I be admitted in 
 
          15        support of any action that the Commission will 
 
          16        take. 
 
          17             RON PIERINI:  Thank you, Mr. Jensen. 
 
          18        Approval of admission of exhibits.  All right. 
 
          19        So do we have any questions from the 
 
          20        Commission? 
 
          21             JIM WRIGHT:  Question for the record. 
 
          22        Jim Wright:  Mike, with this service out of 
 
          23        Washington, is that where he's located now? 
 
          24             MIKE JENSEN:  That's my understanding. 
 
          25        He's living in the state of Washington now.  



                                                                        60 
 
 
 
           1             JIM WRIGHT:  Because I noticed he's got 
 
           2        some P & P conditions here and I was wondering 
 
           3        about the issue if he's not here. 
 
           4             UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  He transferred. 
 
           5             MIKE JENSEN:  (inaudible) interstate.  I 
 
           6        notice in his judgment of conviction, which is 
 
           7        Exhibit I, it looks like he was sentenced 
 
           8        to -- credit for time served.  So I'm not sure 
 
           9        if he was placed on probation or not under 
 
          10        that judgment. 
 
          11             UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay. 
 
          12             MIKE JENSEN:  And it doesn't say the 
 
          13        number of days that he served.  So it's vague 
 
          14        on what he actually -- what the actual 
 
          15        sentence was because it just says credit for 
 
          16        time served. 
 
          17             RON PIERINI:  Okay.  Anybody else have 
 
          18        any comments or questions?  To the public? 
 
          19        For a motion. 
 
          20             MICHELE FREEMAN:  Michelle Freeman, I 
 
          21        move to revocate. 
 
          22             RON PIERINI:  Great.  Second? 
 
          23             RUSS PEDERSEN:  Russ Pedersen, I second. 
 
          24             RON PIERINI:  Any other questions? 
 
          25        Comments?  All in favor?  



                                                                        61 
 
 
 
           1             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
           2             RON PIERINI:  Any opposed to?  Okay. 
 
           3        We're going to go to Number 7 under public 
 
           4        comment.  I just want to mention a couple of 
 
           5        things, one of which is: Gary Schofield is 
 
           6        is now retired; is that correct? 
 
           7             UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible).  Yes. 
 
           8             RON PIERINI:  And he has been allowed to 
 
           9        be here as one of our commissioners, which I'm 
 
          10        really happy with. 
 
          11             UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  The sheriff has 
 
          12        asked me to continue this position. 
 
          13             RON PIERINI:  You've done a great job for 
 
          14        us and I'm glad to see you're going to 
 
          15        continue it.  Thank you. 
 
          16                  The second thing is dealing with the 
 
          17        public comment as Mr. Jensen does such a great 
 
          18        job dealing with the situations where we have 
 
          19        people with misdemeanors, gross misdemeanors, 
 
          20        felonies, and all of that.  He puts all of 
 
          21        that together and does a great job for us. 
 
          22        And I don't know if we ever say that enough to 
 
          23        you. 
 
          24             MIKE JENSEN:  You don't have to say that, 
 
          25        but I appreciate you saying it.  



                                                                        62 
 
 
 
           1             RON PIERINI:  You do a great job, and it 
 
           2        takes a long time to gather all of that and 
 
           3        you put a lot of effort into it, and I know 
 
           4        that. 
 
           5                  All right.  Anybody else or any kind 
 
           6        of comments?  Okay.  We'll go on then.  When 
 
           7        is our next meeting?  I think we know that. 
 
           8             MIKE SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 
 
           9        record.  We did get in touch with Bob Roshak 
 
          10        with Sheriffs and Chiefs and it looks like 
 
          11        we're good for Thursday the 27th of July at 
 
          12        1:00 p.m out in Ely. 
 
          13             RON PIERINI:  Well, it says in here with 
 
          14        possible actions, we've got to have a motion, 
 
          15        so does anybody want to make that? 
 
          16                  We're going to do it on the 27th? 
 
          17        Can I have somebody do a motion right now? 
 
          18             DAN WATTS:  I will. 
 
          19             RON PIERINI:  You're good for that, 
 
          20        because that's your spot.  All right.  And 
 
          21        Gary did a second, thank you (laughter).  All 
 
          22        in favor? 
 
          23             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
          24             RON PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  Okay. 
 
          25        How about adjournment?  Does anybody want to  



                                                                        63 
 
 
 
           1        do that motion? 
 
           2             TROY TANNER:  Troy Tanner, I make a 
 
           3        motion for adjournment. 
 
           4             RON PIERINI:  Second? 
 
           5             GARY SCHOFIELD:  I second. 
 
           6             RON PIERINI:  All in favor? 
 
           7             MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye. 
 
           8             RON PIERINI:  All right.  Thank you. 
 
           9                          - - - 
 
          10            (Hearing concluded at 9:34:50 a.m.) 
 
          11                          - - - 
 
          12 
 
          13 
 
          14 
 
          15 
 
          16 
 
          17 
 
          18 
 
          19 
 
          20 
 
          21 
 
          22 
 
          23 
 
          24 
 
          25  



                                                                        64 
 
 
 
           1                      CERTIFICATE 
 
           2             I, Kelli R. Billingsley, do hereby 
               certify: 
           3             That the foregoing is a true and accurate 
 
           4   transcript of the electronic audio recording from 
 
           5   the meeting in the above-entitled manner. 
 
           6 
                                 __________________________ 
           7                     Kelli R. Billingsley, 
                                 May 25, 2017 
           8 
 
           9 
 
          10 
 
          11 
 
          12 
 
          13 
 
          14 
 
          15 
 
          16 
 
          17 
 
          18 
 
          19 
 
          20 
 
          21 
 
          22 
 
          23 
 
          24 
 
          25 





COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 4 
 

 4.  INFORMATIONAL 
  Executive Directors Report 
   
  a. Training Division:  Update on training and shoot house 
  b. Standards Division:  Legislative update on Dispatcher Certification Program 

 c. Administration:  Filled the Administrative Assistant II vacant position 





COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 5 
 

5.    DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 A request from the Lander County Sheriff’s Office for their employee Spencer Roberts, for 

a 6 month extension past the one year requirement, to April 3rd, 2018, in order to meet the 
requirements for certification 

 
 





COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 6 
 

6.    DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 A request from the Mineral County Sheriff’s Office for their employee Michael Cannella, 

for a 6 month extension past the one year requirement, to February 15, 2018, in order to 
meet the requirements for certification 

 
 





COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 7 
 

7.    DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 A request from the Washoe County Sheriff’s Officer for their employee Chief Deputy 

Thomas Green for an Executive Certificate. 
 

 

























COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 8 
 

8.    DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 A request from the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department for their employee Assistant 

Sheriff Thomas A. Roberts for an Executive Certificate.  
 

 

















COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 9 
 

9.    DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 A request from the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department for their employee Captain 

Jack R. Owen for an Executive Certificate.  
 

 

















COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 10 
 

10.    DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 Hearing pursuant to NAC 189.290(1)(g) on the suspension of Robert Reasoner, formerly 

of the Nevada Transportation Authority, certification based on a Criminal Complaint to a 
Category C Felony.  The Commission will decide whether to suspend Mr. Reasoner’s 
Category II Basic Certificate.  

 
 



EXHIBIT  A











EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT D



EXHIBIT E







COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEM 11 
 

11.    PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Commission may not take action on any matter considered under this item until the 
matter is specifically included on an agenda as an action item.   

 
 

 





COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 12 & 13 
 

12.   DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
   Schedule upcoming commission meeting. 
 

13.    DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
Adjournment. 

 
 

 


	Notice/Meeting Agenda
	Item 1 Call to Order and 2 Roll Call
	Item 5 six month extension, Lander Co SO Spencer Roberts
	Item 6 six month extension, Mineral County SO Michael Cannella
	Item 7 Executive Certificate Washoe Co SO Chief Deputy Thomas Green
	Item 8 Executive Certificate LV Metro Assist. Sheriff Thomas A. Roberts
	Item 9 Executive Certificate LV Metro Captain Jack R. Owen
	Item 10 Suspension Hearing Robert Reasoner
	Item 11 Public Comments
	Item 12 Schedule upcoming Commission Meeting
	Item 13 Adjournment
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



